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Independent Auditor's Report 

To the Members of Torrid Solar Power Private Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Torrid Solar Power Private Limited ("·the 
Company'") which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31. 2023 and the Statement of Profit and 
Loss for the year ended, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income. the Cash 17low 
Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended. and notes to the Ind /\S 
linancial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us. the 
aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements g ive the information requi red by the Companies Act. 
2013 ( .. the Act .. ) in the manner so required and give a true and fa ir view in confom,ity with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India. of the state of affairs of the Company as at 
March 31 s1 2023, its Loss including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in 
equity for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing 
(SAs). as specified under section 143( I 0) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are 
l'u11her described in the 'Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements' 
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the 'Code of Ethics' issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of [ndia together with the ethical requirements that arc 
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder. 
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the 
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that. in our professional judgment. were of most signi ficancc in 
our aud it of the standalone linancial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed 
in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole. and in form ing our 
opinion thereon. and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

Reporting of Key audit matters as per SA 70 I is not applicable to the company as it is an unlisted 
company. 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other in formation. The other · 
comprises the information included in the Annual report but docs not include the 
statements and our auditor's report thereon. 
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Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and. in doing so. consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with 
the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed. we conclude that there is a material misstatement 
of this other information. we arc required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Emphasis of Matter 

We draw attention to Note 31 of the financial statements, which describes the effect of 

(Rs Jn '000.\) 

• The company have an outstanding trade receivable amounting to Rs. 47,502 from BESCOtvl as 
at 31 st March 2023 . The company is in the process of entering into a supplementary Power 
Purchase Agreement ("PPA .. ) and is awaiting approval from the regulatory authorities. Since 
the same is pending the amount due from BESCOM of Rs.47.502 is not being received from 
May 2019 till March 2023. The total amount held ti ll March 2023 by BESCOM will be released 
only after the supplementary ··PPA ·· is approved. 

• The amount to be paid (Rs.0.53 per unit) to the Farmer from FY 2017-18 to FY 2022-23 as 
royalty (as per MOU). has been recognised in the Financial Statements during the current 
financial year as the company received partially the long outstanding dues from BESCOM. 

• The Management is confident of getting the approval from the regulatory authorities in the near 
future and thus no provision is created for the same. 

• Our Opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

Management's Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements 

The Company's board of directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act"') with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that 
give a true and fair view of the financial pos ition, financial performance and cash nows of the Company 
in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India. including the accounting 
strtndards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued thereunder. 

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds 
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting pol icies; making judgmcnts 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent: and design. implem~ntation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records. relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that 
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible fo r assessing the Company's 
ability to cont inue as a going concern. disclosing. as applicable. matters related to going concern and 
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company 
or to cease operations. or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also respoi1sible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process. 



Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements 

Our objectives arc to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a 
whole arc free from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that 
an audit conducted in accordance wi th SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if. individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to in flucnce the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of these Ind AS financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SJ\s, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks o r material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements. 
whether due to fraud or error. design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. 
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
The ri sk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion. fo rgety. intentional omissions. 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section I 43(3)(i) of the Act. we are 
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness 
of such controls. 

• Eva I uate the appropriateness of accounting po licies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained. whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a goit_)g 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists. we are required to draw attention in 
our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, i r such disclosures 
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions arc based on the audit evidence obtained 
up to the dale of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the 
Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure. and content of the Ind AS financial statements. 
including the disclosures. and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underl ying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fai r presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in 
aggregate. makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the 
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiali ty and qualitative factors in 
(i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work: and (ii) to cvalunte 
the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all re · · · nd other 



matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence. and where appl icable, related 
safeguards. 

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements 

I. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order. 2020 ( .. the Order .. ). issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section ( 11 ) of Section 143 of the Companies Act. 2013, we 
enclose in the Annexure - B, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the said 
Order. 

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act. we report that: 

(a) We have sought and o btai ned a ll the information and explanations which to the best of o ur 
knowledge and belief were necessary fo r the purposes of our audit; 

(b) In our opinion. proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so 
far as appears from our examination of those books: 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other 
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt 
with by this Repo11 arc in agreement with the books of account; 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015. as amended; 

(c) On the basis of the wri tten representations received from the d irectors as on March 31. 2023 
taken on record by the Board of Directors. none of the directors is disqualified as on March 3 1, 
2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Sectio n 164 (2) of the Act 

(0 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over linancial reporting of the 
Company with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and the operating effectiveness 
of such controls. refer to our separate Report in "Annexure A., to this report; Our report 
expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effecti veness o r the 
company's internal financial controls over financial reporting. 

(g) Accord ing to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our exami nation 
of the records of the Company, managerial remuneration has not been paid /provided. 
Accord ing ly. reporting under section 197(16) of the Act is not applicable: and 

01) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors· Report in accordance with 
Rule 11 of the Companies (Aud it and Auditors) Rules.20 14. in our opinion and lo the best of 
our information and accord ing to the explanations g iven to us: 

L The company does not have any pending li tigations for the current period; 

it The company have an outstanding trade receivable amounting to Rs.47.502 from 
BESCOM as at 31st March 2023. The company is in the process or entering into a 
supplementary Power Purchase Agreement ('·PPA '') and is awaiting approval from the 
regulatory authorities. Since the same is pending the amount due from BESCOM is not 
being received from May 2019. The total amount held by BESCOM will be released o nly 
after the supplementary " PPA .. is approved. 

ut There were no amounts wh ich were requ ired 10 be transferred 10 the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund by the Company. 

rv. The management has represented that. to the best of its knowledge 



as disclosed in the notes to the accounts. 

1. no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or 
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any 
other person or entity, including foreign entities 'Intermediaries', with the 
understanding. whether recorded in writing or otherwise. that the Intermediary shall. 
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified 
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company 'Ultimate Beneficiaries' 
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimat~ 
Benefic iaries; and 

11. no funds have been received by the company from any person or entity. including 
foreign entities 'Funding Parties'. with the understanding. whether recorded in 
wri ting or otherwise, that the company shall, whether. directly or indirectly. lend or 
invest in other persons or entities identi tied in any manner whatsoever by or on 
behalf of the Funding Party 'Ultimate Beneficiaries' or provide any guarantee. 
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

111. Based on audit procedures carried out by us. that we have considered reasonable 
and appropriate in the circumstances. nothing has come to our notice that has caused 
us bel ieve that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any material 
misstatement. 

v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividends during the year and accord ingly 
reporting on the compliance with section 123 of the Companies Act.20 13 is not applicable 
for the year under consideration. 

VL As proviso to Rule 3( I) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules. 2014 (as amended). which 
provides for books of account to have the feature of audit trail. edit log and related matters 
in the accounting software used by the Company. is appl icable to the Company only with 
effect from financial year beginning April I , 2023, the reporting under clause (g) of Ru le 
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules. 20 I 4 (as amended), is currently not 
applicable. 

For /\BCD & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm No: 0 l 6415S 

Kumar Bachha r 
Membership No: 214520 
Place: Chennai 
Date: 22nd May 2023. 
UDIN: 23214520BGWSZC3456 



"Annexure -A" to the Auditors' Report 

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under · Report on other legal and regulatory requirements· section o r our 
report to the members of Torrid Solar Power Private Limited of even date) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 1-t3 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

\Ve have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Torrid Solar Power Private 
Limited ("the Company") as of March 31 , 2023, in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial 
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's Management is responsible fo r establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit o f Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These 
responsibilities include the design. implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls 
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including 
adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection o r frauds 
and errors. the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records. and the timely preparation of reliable 
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 20 13. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibili ty is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial 
reporting with reference to these Ind AS fi nancial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit 
in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
(the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143( I 0) of the Companies 
Act, 20 I 3. to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, both issued by the Institute 
or Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with 
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate 
internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements was 
established and maintained and if such controls operated effecti vely in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain aud it evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and their 
operating effectiveness. Our audit of in.ternal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining 
an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS 
financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists. and testing and evaluating the 
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor's j udgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements. \-vhether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis fo r 
our audit opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS 
financial statements. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with Reference to these Financial 
Statements 

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial 
statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial 
reporting and the preparation of financial statements fo r external purposes in acco · eherally 



accepted accounting princi pies. 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial 
statements inc ludes those policies and procedures that 

(I) pertain to the maintenance of records that. in reasonable detail, accurately and fa irly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company: 

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation or 
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and 
directors of the company: and 

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition. 
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with Reference to 
these Ind AS Financial Statements 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting ·with reference to 
these Ind AS financial statements, including the possibility of col lusion or improper management override 
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also. projections 
of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS 
financial statements to future periods arc subject 10 the risk that the internal financial control over fi nancial 
reporting with reference lo these Ind AS financial statements may become inadequate because of changes 
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion. the Company has. in all material respects. adequate internal financial controls over financial 
reporting with reference to these Ind /\S financial statements and such internal financial controls over 
financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements were operating effectively as at 
March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 

For ABCD & Co, 
Chartered Accountants 
Finn No: 0 1 

~ ~,,.e 
ay Kumar Bachhawat­

Membcrship No: 2 14520 
Place: Chennai, 
Date: 22m1 May 2023. 
UDIN: 232 I 4520BGWSZC3456 



"Annexurc - 8" to the Independent Auditors' Report 

(Referred to in paragraph I under ' Report on other legal and regulatory requirements' section of our 
report to the members of Torrid Solar Power Private Limited of 1.:ven date) 

I. Fixed Assets: 

a) (A) Jn our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
Company is maintaining proper records showing fu ll particulars. including quantitat ive 
details and situation of property, plant and equipment. 

(B) The Company does not have any intangible assets. 

b) The property, plant and equipment of the Company were physically verified by the 
management during the year. According to the information and explanations given to us and 
as examined by us. no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

e) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us. 
we report that the Company does not hold any freehold land as at the balance sheet date. In 
respect of immovable prope,ties of land that have been taken on lease. the lease agreements 
as per Power purchase agreement entered with farmer are in the name of the Company. 

cl) The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment during the year. 

e) In our opinion and according to the infonnation and explanations given to us, there are no 
proceedings in itiated or are pending against the Company for holding any bcnami property 
under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 ( 45 of 1988) and rules made 
thereunder. 

2. Inventories: 

a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us. and on the 
basis of our examination of the books of account, the Company does not have any inventory 
as on 3 1 st March,2023. 

b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crorc rupees. 
in aggregate. from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets at 
any point of time during the year. 

a) In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the Company has 
made loans in the nature of unsecured loans to holding company. 

b) The aggregate amount of transaction during the year and balance outstanding at the balance 
sheet date with respect to loan to holding company is Rs. I 0.282 (in '000s) and Rs. 8.981 
respectively. 

c) In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us. the investments 
made. guarantees provided, security given and the tem1s and conditions of the grant of all 
loans and advances in the nature of loans and guarantees provided are not prejudicial to the 
company·s interest. 

d) The terms of arrangement do not stipulate any repayment schedule and the loans are 
repayable on demand with interest. 



... 

4. 

granted the loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or without 
specifying any terms or period of repayment aggregating to Rs.8.98 1 (in ·o00s) ( I 00% to 
the total loans and advances in the nature of loans granted during the year). The aggregate 
of loans granted to related parties as defined in clause (76) of section 2 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 is Rs.8.981 (in ·000s) 

f) Since the term of arrangement do not stipulate any repayment schedule and the loans arc 
repayable on demand, no question of overdue amounts will arise in respect of the loans 
granted to the parties listed in the register maintained under section 189 of the Act. 

a) In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the Company has 
not granted any loans or provided any guarantees or given any security to which the 
provisions of section 185 of the Act are applicable. 

b) In respect of investments made by the Company and loans given to parties other than those 
covered in Section 185 of the Act, the Company had complied with the provisions of section 
186 of the Act. 

5. The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and hence the directives issued by the 
Reserve Bank oflndia and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the 
Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules. 201 5 regarding to the deposits accepted 
from the public arc not applicable. 

6. The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under sub - section 
( I) of section 148 of the Act, in respect of the activities carried on by the company. However. the 
overall turnover from all its products and services is less than 35 crores in the preceding fi nancial 
year. I lence, reporting under clause (vi) is not appl icable to the company. 

7. In respect of statutory dues: 

a) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis or our examination 
of the books of account. and records, the Company has generally been regular in depositing 
undisputed statutory dues including Income-Tax, Sales tax, Service Tax. Good and Service 
tax (GST). Cess and any other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities. There were 
no undisputed amounts payable in respect of the above as at March 3 1. 2023 for a period or 
more than six months from the date on when they become payable. 

b) According to the information and explanations given to me. there are no dues of income tax. 
sales tax. service tax, duty of customs. duty of excise. value added tax. Good and Service tax 
(GST) outstanding on account of any dispute. 

8. In our opinion and according to the in formation and explanations given to us, there are no 
transactions not recorded in the books of account that have been surrendered or disclosed as income 
during the year in the ta,, assessments under the Income Tax Act, 196 1 (43 or 196 1 ). 

9. 

a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to me. the Company 
has not defaulted in the repayment of dues to banks or other borrowings or in the payment 
of interest thereon to any lender during the year. 

b) In our opinion and according to the infonnation and explanations given to us. the Com any 
is not declared as a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution 



10. 

I I. 

c) The company has 1h,t c;btnin(;c! any term loans during the year. 

d) In our opin ion ,:.uc according to the information and explanations given 10 us. funds ra ised 
on short term ba!>is have not been utiliLcd for long term purposes. 

c) The Compan)' does not have any subsidiaries/ associates/ joint-ventures and accordingly. 
paragraphs 3 (ix) (e) and 3 (ix) (I) or the Order arc not applicable. 

a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given lo us. the Company 
has not raised any money by w;:iy of initial public offer or fu rther public offer (including debt 
instruments) during the year. Accordingly. clause(x)(a) o f the Order is not appl icable. 

b) In our opinion and according LO the information and explanations given to us. the company 
has 1101 made any preferential allotment or private placcmc111 during the year. Accordingly. 
paragraph J (x) (b) of the Order is not applicable. 

a) To rhc best of our kno\\'ledge and according lo the information and explanations given to us. 
no fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company by any person has been 
noticed or reported during the year. Accordingly. c lause(xi)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 

b) No report under subsection ( 12) or section 1-1-J of the companies act has been fi led in lorn, 
ADT--i as prescribed under the rule 13 or the companies (Audit and Auditors) Rulcs.20 1-t 
,vith the central government, during the and up to the elate o f this report. 

c) To the best of our knowledge and according to the in formation and explanations given to us, 
no whi$lle-blo1,,vcr complaints. have been received hy the Company during the year. 

I 2. The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore. the provisions or clausc(xii) of the Order arc 1101 

applicable to the Company. 

13. In our opinion and according to the intormation and explanations giwn ln us, the transactions with 
the related parties arc in compliance with section 188 of the Act and where appl icable. the details 
of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as req uired by the applicabk 
account ing standards, except the fol lowing: 

14. 

Section NMure of Non- Whether rectified I Remarks, if }lny 

Sec 
177 

Comr>liancc subsequently 
Constitution or ot rcetiliecl til l the As informed by the management, the Comp;:rny 
Audit Committee date of issue or was in the process of identifying a suitable 

I audit report candidate for appointing as an Independent 
Directors. However, during the year under 
review, the Company was unable to identify a 
person having relevant industry experience to 
appoint as Independent Director. Therefore, the 
Company was also unable to constitute the Audit 
,ind Nomi na tion and Remu neration Committee. 

a) fn our opinion ;:md according to the information and explanations given to us. the Company 
docs not have an internal audit system and is not required to have an internal audit system 
as per provisions of the Companie~ .-\ct 10 I J. 

I 



b) The company did 1101 km . .: an internal audit system for the period under audit. 

15. Based upon the audit procedures pcrfonnl'd and the informat ion and explanations given by the 
management. the company has not entered any non-cash transactions wi th directors or persons 
connected with him. Accordingly. the provisions of section 192 and c lause(xv) o f the Order an.: not 
applicable to the Company. 

16. 

a) In our opinion. the company is not required to be registered under sect ion 45 IA o l' the 
ResetTC Bank orlndia Act. 193➔ and accord ingly. the provisions of clause(xvi) of1a) and (b) 
o f the Order me not applicable. 

b) In our opinion and according to th1.' information and explana tions given to us. the Company 
is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) and it does not have any other companies in the 
Group as a CIC. According I). pnragraph 3 (xvi )(c) and (cl) of tht.: Order arc not applicable. 

17. The Company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immedinte ly preceding 
financial year. 

18. There has heen no resignation or the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause(xviii ) of 
the Order i!:i not applicnhle. 

19. In our opinion and according 10 tile information and explanations gi\'t.:n to us and on the basis or the 
financial ratios. ageing and expected dates or realisation o r financial assl.!ts and payment of fi nancial 
liabilitit:s. other information accompanying the financial statements. our knowledge of the board or 
directors and management plans. there are no material uncertainty exist. as on the date of the audi l 
report that Company is capable or meeting its liabilities existing at the date or balance sheet as and 
when they fa ll due wi1hi1~ ~i period or one year from the bal:::nce sheet date. We, however. state that 
this is not an a::;surancc ,:s 10 the future viabi lity of the company. We further state that our reponing 
is based on facts up to l he date or audit report and \.\'C neither give any guarantee nor any assurance 
that all liabili ties foiling due within a period or one year from the balance sheet date. will get 
discharged by the company as and \\.hen they fall due. 

20. In our opinion and accord ing to the information and explanations given to us. section 135 or 
Companies act is not applicable to the comrany. Accordingly. report ing under clause3(xx)(a) nnd 
(b) or the order is not applicable for the year. 

21. The reporting under clause 3(x:;i) or the Order is not applicable in rc:spect or audit of Standalone 
Financial Statements. Accordingly. no comment in respect or the said clause has been included in 
this report. 

For /\BCD & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm No: 0 164 15S 

Vinny achhawar= Pannc 
Membership No: 2 14520 
Place: Chennui 
Date: 22nd May 2023. 
UDJN: 232 14520BGWSZC1456 
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I TOR.R m SOLAt< f>owER PRIVATE LIMIT ED 1 

• ·; C JN: IJ74999KA2017PTC I 02966 
I Ha l:rncc Sheet as at 3 1st March 2 023 

ASSETS 
NON-CURRENT ASS ETS 
l)r,1per1y. Plant and Equip111e111 

Financial Assets 

Loans 

Dl"lc rred rnx Asset'; ( et) 
Tot/II No11-C11rre11t Asset.,· 

C URRENT ASSETS 
I llV\:'ntOr ies 

Fi:lilnc inl Assets 

Trade Recci vnbles 

Cash nnd Cash Equ ivalents 

Other Finandal a:,scts 

O ther Current Assets 
Tot/II Current assetJ 
Tola l Assets 

EQ UITY AND LI AOI LITI ES 
EQUIT Y 

Equity Share Capital 

Other l~quity 

T ota l Eq uity 

LIABILITIES 
Non-Current Liabilities 
Financ ial L iabi l itie~ 

Borrowings 

Tot/II No11-C11rre11t liahilities 

Current Liabilities 
Financ ial L iabilities 

Trade Payablrs Due to 

M icro and Sma ll l~nterpr ises 

Other than Mino and Small Enterprises 
Other Financ ial L i:ib il ities 

O ther Current L iabi l it ies 

Tutu/ Cu rrell/ /.i((bili ties 

Tm al liahiliries 
T otal Eq uit y and Liabilities 

Notes 

4 

5 
:!5 

6 

7 
8 
9 
10 

11 
12 

13 

14' 

15 
!6 

As a t 
rRs. 111 ·oonJ 

As ,-It 
3 I-Mar-23 3 l -Mar-27. 

7'.i, l '.25 84.872 

8,93 1 

4,6:l3 5.770 
88,739 90,642 

190 

47,502 47.802 
168 183 
190 53 
'.172 350 ---• 

48,422 4S,388 
1,37,161 1,39,03 I 

100 100 
97,763 1,07. I 86 
97,863 1,1)7,286 ---- -----'----

32.058 30.708 
32,()5.'{ 30,708 

16 1 57 
7 870 

7,071 105 
I ..j 

7,240 1,036 -------
JIJ,298 31, 744 

1,37,16 1 1.39,03!_ 

I 

I 
l 
' 

I 
i 

I 
i 
I 
I ___ J 
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r o 1i R ID SO LAR f'OWER PRiVATE LIIVHT E D 
C l~ : lH 4999K1\.2017PT C102966 
Sta tement of Profi t a nd Loss for the :, cm· ended 31 M a rch Z023 

P\/COME 

Revenue From Operations 
~)1hcr Income 
T o ta l I 11c o111c 

EXPENSES 
P;1rclmsc vf Sl0ck-i11-Trade 
Change:; in invr. nlorics of finished goods and 
Stuck-in -Trade 

Employee Benefit Expenses 
Fin;ti1cc Costs 

Dcpn.:ciatio11 i Amnrtisation b:pcnscs 
(): h,: r r :xpcns1:~ 

l 7 

18 

19 

20 

2 1 

23 

24 

For the Yca1· e nded 
31-M nt -13 

20,9S4 

l Y >O 

2.2,144 

190 

( 190) 
245 

3,40 1 

9.743 

(R~. In ·oOOJ 

Fo r the Year e nded 
3 l -Mar-2 2 

·-·----

19.810 

2 12 
:20,023 

lhJ 

3.G::s 

I 0,615 
l 0,424 __ _____ _?.36~_ 

T o~;.tl :: xpe ns c s 2.3 ,813 16.78'l i 
===~~==--=-=-=-~--=---==~=-=~""="--== ' 

Prn fi1· / ( Loss) Be lo re tax 
T. \ :\: EXPENSES 

C urrt ni Tn. · 

I)( k rrcd Ta:, 
Pm l'i l ior t he Pc riod 
O {hr: r C o m pt·c hen!> ive { n l'.O IHC 

u .. •fft.'i that will no! he re class ifie d lo Prolit o r Loss 

l{<..:m:.: asuremcnts o i' de fine d benefit obliga tions, ne t 
Tot?.! Comp1·c he ns ive htcome for the yc:i r 

E:•:·11i11g', per cquil) "hare (of race va lue of R:;. I O eac il) 
Bas:c ( In Rs. ) 

Oihltl' d ( In Rs. ) 

\\ e ighted average equrly sha res used in cont~•uting 

25 

26 

~<:­
, !\cCO 

! Vin;1 · Ku111.1r Bach ha,\ a t - Parlner 
; fvlen;bnship No: 214520 

~~~~ 
Cf(J 

1 Pl.~ci;:· C'IH.:nnai. 
! 1):1!1..: 22.0::: .202:; 

Place: 88'19Alt.A~u 
I 

{ 1,669) 

1. 1:ii 

(2.806) 

(280.<i0) 
(280.60) 

i0,000 

1,46,H0.489 

3.2..J.O 

1.275 

1.% 5 

10.000 
I A 7 .-16.(>40 

r riyanka ajendrn Muda liyar 
Company Secrett'lry 

Place: Bft--1 ¥Weu 
--------- --·---- -- ···- --·-·-·--·--- -------- --

' 
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: TOHl'UD SOLAR I'OWE R PRIVATE LIMITE D 

. · · I cm: lJ'i4999KA2017PTC102966 

··---·---. , 

l Cash Flow Stalcmcnf for the year c.>ndcd M ard i 31, 2023 

P:1l'licu l:u-s 

;\. C;~-;h flo w from o 11crating ::ictiv itics 
Net Profi t/ (L,,ss ) be fore tax 

-1rli1:st 11,211/s J ,j1·: 

l lcprcciation 

I .o~s 1.ln Di~r <•sai of Asset 
!merest income 

I n:.:rcst cxrH.!nsc 

O perati ng loss before w orl, ing ca pita l ch:111gcs 

1\ djustmc 11ts fo r (increase) / decrease in o perating assets : 

,\d_iustn1c nts for increase / (decrease) in o r-c rati ng liab i lities : 
l :i\·Cl1tor it'S 

Tr:1J c !free i vables 

Utl1cr C"urrcrn ,-\ sscts 

Track Pay.ibks 

nrlier r 'i 11,rn ,_; i :.i l L iabi l i ties 

Oti1cr C urr,;:nt Li<1bil it ic:: 

Ca::.h u-.;..:d in " peratio n~ 

,'k l ::ash f1o" from / tused) o perating activ iti l·S 

B. Ca.,,h nm~· from im, csting activ ities 
1'1 11 ch,i;,• J i" Fixed ,\ sscts 

1,, ·1·1 ,;ivc;:n to relmcd parties 

l., •cre<;t Received 

,°"/1'• u 1sh llow fron, i (used ) i n, ·,:!,ling :-icfiv iliE':, 

C t ';1~h flo,,· frum financing 9rfiviti'<'s 

i ' rl'•:•x·ds fr0 :n ( lh-,J,1y ,11e11 t ,, f) !';on C m ri:.nt [3 ,:,rrowings 
, 11:,:.-~,,1 Paid 

l~~,ul' ot' Do:bc11tur..::, 

1 : -: .. k 111ptio11 :) f Di.:bcnturcs 

N t•I c;1:; l! no11 from / tusel.!) in financing :1cth iti~s 

Ncr i •1LTcase I (d c~:rcasc) i11 cash a nd ca sh cq ui\'a lcn ts ( A+ll+C ) 
c ,, ._1, ,i;,d l·a sh c411 iYi1:l'nts .11 the !.>cg:inning o f lh~ ,-ear 

C:ish :,nt.i ca,;h ci~ui\·a lenls :it the end o f the period 

Ca~h and ca sh ct1ui \'a le 11 ts as per cas h flow s tatemen t 
< ·;i~I. ;:1 11 hand 

Baia11,;1; with banks in curreni a..:cou1:t 

C ash :rn<I cash cquiv:ileu ts as pc1· Bal:rncc shc,~t 

Fo r the year ended 
31 Mai·ch :?023 

( 1.669) 

CJ.743 

5 

l29 I) 
3,401 

11 ,189 

( 190) 

300 
(2 1) 

I 
I 

(Rs. 111 '()(}{}j 

Fur the year ended 
3 1 i\farch 2022 

J.2-1 0 

10.615 

3.6.~S j 
___ l_i ,49J I 

I 

i 
( 11.070) i 

( 148) · 

(759) i276) I 
6,966 I S I 

(2) (25) . 

_____ __ ,_7.;,_4_8_1 _______ }'>89 I 
17,481 :-,98? . 

---- ·----'----- ---- - - - --- I 

(8.981 ) 

153 ---- - - -
(8.828) 

I 
(3.2 , 9) ! 

I 
I 

(~,21 ~>1 I 

I 
I 

( 5.687) ! 
(G.3~) 

10.653 ! 
(8.6GS) l ~.029) · 
(R,668) - ---- 2,304 I 

( 15_)__ _ __ --~~-3- i 
183 110 

168 I 83 
' 

168 18J ! 
·- --- --- I 

I 

168 183 - - -
168 183 

I 
~ot-.:s 

. I. r he -:a-;h fl uw swternent is r :·eparcd under Indirect Method a~- set out in Ind AS 7, Statement of Cash f- lows noti lied 
I \lnck r ~cc1.io11 13] o f thcCorn pa nicsAct. 20! 3. 
''J '.{e.:r,nc iliotio11 of cash and cnsh ;:-quivalents w ith the Balance Sheet. 
' : ~•:e .1ccompan_yi rig I10Ies to the Financial Statcm•!nts: 1-36 
! As per our n:p()n ( ) f C\ en date For To·-,-T-id_S_o_la_r_P_o_,-,,-er Private Lim ited -··----·····--

j 1·(11" AIKO & C'!'. ,. ,A. f ~?OW~,O 

· C':;a ;-tered Accountant~ ----. __/i 'l - _ ~fl \~\ 't')\Il>~ 0(/)S.□-; ,: 
1 1:innNo:O l/iJ i :Sc.; ~ ~fl • 

Francis t\run Kumar Dinesh Kumar Agan va 0<Y ~ ' 

I 

: \ rnar Bad1lul\\ . 
I i\kn;bcrsh ip No: ;1 1-1 5'.20 

I Plai;e: -~·1ic~111ai~--
1 Dale: ~..: .0) .20 .... ) 

o ;,•~ , (DIN:07162895) Di,·~4475 ~• : 

~ a:\;:,:~~ida f'riyn~ a l\1 udali var . 
CFO Compa11y Secretary 

Place: BEN ~ALUR.l} Ploce: ~ ~AWf:_U 

·----- •·---·----- -··- --' 



r:l·;~iiiim s·oC\R rowER PRIVATE LIMIT ED 
· • Cl N: lf 1'4999KA20 l 7PT C102966 

---7 

S ta tcmc 11t o f'Cha11gcs in Equity for the year ended 3 1 M arch 2023 

(Rs. In '000) 
1. Eq uity S hare Ca pita! 

Particu lars No of Shares Amount 
Equity shares I 'R I O each issued. subscribed and 
fu lly pa id 

As at 31st March 2022 10,000 JOO .. 

Issue o f equity shares - -
As at 31st Man.:h 2023 10,000 100 

2. OTHER EQUITY 

·-
Equity 

R <.~tained 
Compo nent of Total equity 

IParliculars 
Earnings 

Compound attributable to 
Financial eq uity holders 

i Ins truments 
~ 31 March 2022 

·-
(22,326) 1,29,512 1,07, .1 86 

[Add: Prnflt fol' the- year (2,806) (2,806) r--
i Less: Debent ures redeemed - 6,6 17 6,6 17 

IAs at 3 1 Marc h 2023 (25,132) 1,22,895 97,763 

See accompanying no tes to the Financial Stntcm'.!nts: 1-36 

As per our reporl of cvt:n elate 
For ABCD & Co. 

For Torrid Solar Power Private Limited 

Chartered Accountan ts 
Firm No: 0 16'11 5S --A Q G', Ap<p 

F \ K ranc1s Arun umar 
D'\') 

Dinesh Kumar Ac 

. V~ Bachha"at - Partne,· 

Director (DIN: 07 161895) Director (DIN: 0 

I Mcn;bership No: 2 l-+510 
Pince: Chennni, 
Dak: 22 .05 .1023 

2.~.~~a 
cro 
Place:f:sG~\6f'LUg_u 

r-#. : _: I 1· 
nynn ,<a Ra_1enc ra Muda 1ynr 

Company Secreta1y 
Place: /?,£~\~LJJeu 

! 
I 
j 

I 
I 
I 

I 
' I 
I 
I 
I 

-1 
' ' 
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!Trn{RID SGLAR POWER PJUVATE LIM I.TED 
CI N: U74999KA2017PT C102966 
Notes to Standa lo ne Financial S tatements for the year ended 31 Ma rch 2023 

1. Co rporate Information 
TORRID SOLAR POWER PRIVATE LI MITED is incorporated in May 20 17 having its registered office in 
Karnataka. registered under the Companies Act 201 3. It is formed to act as a Special Purpose Yehick (SPY) for the 
I im ited purpose to develop, execute. manage and run solar power generation project. 

2. Basis o f P reparation 

a. Compliance with Ind AS 
rl1c fi nancial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notifi ed under 
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 20 13 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Ac,;ounting Standards) Rules, 20 15 (as • 
amended)] and other relevant provisions o f the Act. 
Accounti ng policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initia lly 
adopted or a rev isiL1n to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the account ing policy hitherto in use. 
Details of the Company's signi ficant accounting policies are included in Note 3. 

b. Historical cost convention 
rhe financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following: 
- certa in finnncial assets and liabil ities (includ ing derivntive instruments) that are measured at lair value; 
- defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value; and 
- share-based payments measured at fai r value. 

c. New anll a mended standards adopted 
The Ministry ofCorpornte Affairs had vide noti ficat ion dated 23 Mnrch 2022 notified Companies (Indian /\ccouming 
Standards) Amendment Rules. 2022 which amended certain accounting standards. and are effective I April 21)22. 
These amcndrncnls did not have any impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods and are not e:-.:pected to 
significantly affect the current or future periods. 

d. Operating Cycle 
Based on the nature of products/activities of the Company and the normal time bet, veen acquisition of assets and their 
r~alization in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has determined its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose 
or classificntion or its assets and liabilit ies as current and non-current. 

c. Functional and presentation currency 
Items included in the fi nancial statements of the entity are measured using tlic currency of the primary economic 
cnvironme11t in which the entity operates ('the functiona l currency'). The finan~ial statements are presented in Indian 
rupee, which is 1he Company's functional and presentation currency. 

f. Use of r,;timates 
In preparing. these financial statements. Management has made j udgments, estin,ates and assumptions that affect the 
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabi lities, income and expenses. Actual results 
could differ from those estimates. 
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting est imates are 
rccogn ized prospectively . 
.ludg~ments are made in applying accounting policies that have the most s ignificant effects on the amounts recog11izccl 
in the financial statements and the same is disclosed in the relevant notes to the financial statements. 
t.\ssumption:; and estimation uncertai nties that have a signi ficant risk of resulting in a material adjustment are rev iewed 
on an on-going basis and the same is disclosed in the relevant notes to the financial statements. 

g. Measurement of fa ir values 
Fair vc1 lue is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants al the measur,!ment date, regardless of whether that price is directly ob:,crvable or 
cstimat . · her valuation technique. In estimating the fa ir value ofan asset or a liabil ity, the C'ompany lakes 
into, racteristics of the asset or liabil ity if market paiticipants would take those - L .M .~:r.-,,.. o 
ace g the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fa ir value for measmement e 
pur ancial statements is dett:rmined on such a basis and measurements that have s o 
fri i, ~::-:~ fair val ue. such as net real isable va lue in Ind AS 2 or value in use in Ind AS 



---, 
ln' additidn. for tinancial repo1ting purposes, fa ir value measurements are categorised into Level I. 2 or 3 basC:'d on 1 

the degree to wh ich the inputs to the fa ir value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the ! 
fa ir value measurl.!mcnt in its entirety. which are described as fo llows: 
- Level I inputs arc quoted prices (unadjust1!d) in active markets for identical assets or liabi lities that the entity can 
access at the measurement elate. 
- Level 2 inputs are inputs. other than quoted prices included within Level I. that are observable for the asset or 
liability, either directly (i.e.as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices); 
- Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liabi lity. 

3. Sign ificant Accounting Policies 

a. Revenue Recognition 

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are rendered to the 
customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange 
for those good or services. 
Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adj usted for d iscounts and other 
incenti ves, if any. as spec ified in the contract with the customer. Revenue also exc ludes taxes or other amounts 
collected from customers in its cap:.1city as an agent. If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount. 
lhe Company cs1imatcs the amount of consideration to wh ich it wi ll be entitled in exchange for trani:forring the 
goods to tlw customer. The variable cons ideration is estimated at contract incept ion and constrained until it is 
highly probable that a s ignificant revenue reversal in the amount of cum ulative revenue recogn ised will not occur 
when the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved. 

b. Prope rty. pla nt a nd eq uipment 
i. Tangible 
Tangible property. plant and equipment (PPE) acquired by the Company are reported at acqu1s1t1011 co~t less 
accum ulaletl depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The acquisition cost includes ai1~1 cost 
attributable for bringing an asset to its working condition net of tax/duty credits availetl, which comprises nf purchase 
consideration and other directly attributable costs of bringing the assets to their working cond ition for their intended 
use. PPE is rccognist:d when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item wi ll flow to the 
Company and the cost of the item can be m<~asured rel iably. 

ii. Capit.il wo rk-in-progress 

PPE 110 1 ready tor the intended use 0 11 the date of the Balance Sheet are disclosed as ·'capital work--in-progress•· and 
carried at cost. comprising direct cost, relatt:cl incidental expenses and attributable interest. 

i ii . Intangil>lc 
Intangible assets arc recognised when 1t is probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset 
wi II flow to the enterprise and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Intangible assets are stated at origi1ial 
cost net of tax/dul) cred its availed. if any, less accumulated amortisation and cumulative impairment. Ad111 inistrntivc 
and 01her genera l overhead expenses that are specifically attributable to the acquisition of intangible asset.; are 
allocated and capi1alised as a part of the cost of the intangible assets. Expenses on software suppo11 and maintenance 
arc charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the year in which such costs are incurred. 

iv. Intangible assets under development 
Intangible assets not ready fo r the intended use on the dare of Balance Sheet arc disclosed as " Intangible assets under 
development". 

v. Depreciation and A mo rtisation 
Depreciable amount for tangible property. plant and equipment is the cost of an asset. or other amount substituted for 
cost. less its estimated residual value. Depreciation on tangible property, plant and equipment has been provided on 
the ,,ritten clown method as per the mefu l life prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act. 20 13. Depreciation 
method is reviewed at each fi nancial year end to reflect expected patt ern of consumption of the future economic 
benefits embodied in the asser. 
The~ tin ted useful life and residual value:; are also reviewed at each fi nancial year end with_ the e ffect of any change 
i)l,0J~ tcs of usefu l life/residual 'value is accounted on prospective basis. Depre · · n for · add itions 
(i~~' c uct1 fl owned assets is calculated pro rata to the remaining period of use. Depree· 61 ' ~ for impa ired 
~~ ts is adj 1~ in future periods in such a manner that the revised carry ing amount of tl i, set is a ' tcd ove r its I 
· ,t, · 1i11 , ,;,;; I life. All capital assets with individual value less than Rs. 5,000 are de ~~~1~

1
tt1

1
f9 in the )ear in I 

, 1 1 , ;;i. =r · Cflenna • 14 c: 
, , ;l't't:lJ'o · purchased. ~ I!' I 

~ ~<::- I 
~d AcCO Estimated usefu l Ii fe considered by the Company are: I 

'------------------- ·------ -------- - ----------·-- ----' 



I 

I 
I 

. 
Asset Estimated llscful Life 

Furniture Firtin~ JO Years 
Plant and Machineries 25 Years 

Motor Vehicles 10 Years 

vi. Impairment o f assets 
Upon an observed trigger or at Lhe end of each accounting year, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its 
PPE, investm ent prope1ty and intangible as:-;,!t to determ ine whether there is any ind ication that lhe asset have suffered 
an im pairment loss. If such indication exists, the PPE, investment property and intangible assets are tested for 
impa irment so :is to determine the impairment loss. if any. 

Impairment loss is recogn ised when the carry ing amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable 
amount is the higher of fa ir value less cost 0f disposal and va lue in use. 

vii. De-recognition of proper·ty, plant and equipment and intangible asset 
An item of PPE and intangible assets is derccognised upon disposal or when no future cconom ic benefits are expected 
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of PPE 
is dctcrn1im:d as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in 
the Statement or Profit and Loss. 

c. Cash a nd Cash Equivalents 
For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash !lows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand. 
deposits held at call ,vith financial institutions, other short-term, highly liqu id investments with original maturities of 
three months or kss that are readi ly convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insigni ficant 
risk of changes in ,-aluc, and bank overdraft$. 

tl. Foreign Currency Trnnsac tion 
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates or the 
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such tran~actions and from the 
translation of monetary assets and liabi lities denominated in fo reign currencies at year end exchange rate:; are 
general ly recognized in statement profit and loss. A monetaiy item for which settlement is neither planned nor likely 
10 occur in the foreseeable future is cons idered as a part of entity's net investment in that foreign operation. Non­
monetary assets and non-monetary liabilit ies denominated in a foreign currency and measured at fair , ·alue arc 
translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the date when the fa ir value ,vas determined. Non-monetary assets and 
non-monetary liabi lities denominated in a foreign currency and measured at historical cost are translated at the 
exchange rale prt::\'alent at the date of transaction. 
Foreign exchangC'. differences aris ing on translation of foreign currency borrowings are presented in the statement of 
profit and loss. " i1hin finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the statement of 
profit and loss on a net basis with in other income or other expense. 

c. r ncornc Taxes 
l'hc income tax expense or cred it for the period is the tax payable on the current period' s taxable income based on the 
applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary 
differences and unused tax losses. 
The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of 
the reportinf: period. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in 
which appl icable tax regulat ion is subject to interpretation. It establ ishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of 
amounts expected to be paid to the tnx authorities. The Company measures its tax balances for uncertain tax positions 
t.: ither based 0 11 the most likely amount or tlw expected value, depending on which method prov ides a better prediction 
o f the resolution 0r the uncerta inty. 
Dcforrcd incomt.: tax is provided in ful l, us ing the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax 
bases of assets and liabil ities and their carrying amounts in the financ ial statements. Deferred income tax i:. not 
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business 
corn~ ,. at at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting profit nor taxable pr t{O: ). O~ferred 
in ,~,<c .· ~ · ·nn incd using tax rates (anJ laws) that have been enacted or substantially ~~ eel by @ nd or the 
r ng pe~ ~ · nd arc expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset i (!) fiffi:OCB4Jli rt, deferred 
• ftt>,. 1 · · · I cl -::,- Chennal - 14 -
I ll ,v<l) e tax I, , IS Sett e . Q) ~ 

D ls are recognized for all deductible tempora1y differences and for unuse ~-t,- = ~1;:s ly if it is 
1=~~<11,.-1 1tur · taxable amoums will be available to utilize those temporary differences an r,r:;> 



. 
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f)C::fo rret.l 'lax assers and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right l •J offset current tax asscti; and 
!iabi'i ities and wlwn the deferred tax balance:; relak to tl1c same taxation authority. Cum:nt ta.x. assets ant.l tax I iabilities 
arc offset where the entity has a iciaily enforceable righ.: to offset and inknds e ithe r to settle on a ,~et basis. c,r to 
rc~liz.:: the ai,set and settle lhc 1iabi li ty siir:u!L..1 ncou~ly -.virh i;: the same jurisdiction. 

C urn:nt a u<I deferred tax for the year 

Current and dele rrcd tax is rec(:g11ized in ;tate111e11 : 0 1· prof:t and loss, except co the extent thar it relaies tc, iter,1 
ro;;cognized in other comprehens:ve income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is a lso reco!'.,n iz,~d in other 
comprehensive income or directly in equity. respectively. 

f. l'rovisions, and Contingencies 

Prov isions are recognized when the Company has a presem obligation (legal or coi1stru-::t ive) as result ofa past e\ ent. 
it is probable that the Company wil l be rP.qt1ired (l} settle th0 ooliga1 ion. and a rdiabl1) estimate c,in be made ol'the 
«mou nt or the obligat ion . 
file rnnount recognized as a provision is the best estiniate of the consideration required to settle tlw present obligation 
::\ the> end of the reporting period . raking info accou11t the risks and uncertainties surround ing the obligati<,n . When a 
prm ision is measured using the ~ash flc•w~ ci:timated to settle the present obligatilrn. irs carrying amount is the present 
vulue of those cash flews(" hen the effect of' the time va lue of money is material). The discount rate used tci determine 
the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the ti111c value of money nnd the risks 
sper ilic to the liabil ity. The increase in t!1e provision due to the passage of time is recngnized as interest r:xpen:;e. /\ 
cii;:;c!usurc for contingcn1 liabilities is mack w he:-e there is a poss ible obligation or a present ob ligation 1hat •nay 
probably not r<::quire an 011tflow or rcs01.1rces or an obligation for which the future outcome cannot be ascertained with 
1-.0::isvnabk certainty. \Vhcn there is ::i possible or a present oh ligation where the likelihood of outflow of resources is 
:·emote-. no prov;sio 11 or disclosure is made. 
i'rovision for or;-:rous contracts i.c., contact.; where the e:-.peckd una\'o:dable <.:osts or meeting the ob ligntions under 
the contract ,;xcct'd the econom i,: benefits c::pected to be received under it. are rccogni1.ed when it is prob:iblc that an 
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle n present obligation a::; a result of ,rn 
1.1bligat ing even!. based on reliable estirnalt: of such obligaLion. 

;.:. . Earnings Per Sha;-~ 
( i) Basic ea rnings pC'r shan• 

Dasic: e.1rn i11gs per :;hare is caicu!ated by dividing: - the profil attrib11tab!c tc• owner~ of the Company - by 
the wi.: igl1tt'd a \'crag~ number nf equity shares outstanding during tile financial year, adjust.eel fo r bonus 
;.:;knH:nrs in equity shar.::. issued during the year and exclud ing treasi1ry shares. 

(ii) l)ilutcd earnings 1wr share 

Dilull.'d earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earn ings p•~r ~lime to take 
in~o ac:count: 
- the alkr-i11come t,:x effect of interest and other fi nancing costs as"ociatccl with dilutive potc11tinl equity 
s l1are~- and 
- the w,:ightcd average number or add itional equity shares that would have been outstanding assumius the 
cnm i.:r:, iun of all dilutive potentia l equity shares. 
- potcntinlly issuable equity share:;. that could potent ially di lute basic earnings per share. are not included 
in the calculation of diluted earnings per share when they :-ire anti-dilutive for the period presented. 

h. Cash F low Statements 

Cash !lows are r.;;ported using the ind irect method. whereby profit fo r the period is adjusted for the effects of 
transactions of a non-cash nature. any de;errals or accruals of past or future operati ng i.:ash receipts or pa~·ments and 
item of inc0111e or expenses associated with investing or financing cash 00ws. Thi! cash !lows from opernting. 
investing and financing activit ies of the Com pany are segregated. 

1. Financial 1ns trumcn ts: 

f'he Company recognizes fi nancial assets and financial liabil itics when it becomes a pm1y to 1he co11tn1ctunl provi:;io:1s 
of the instrument. /\ II financ ial assets and !i:tbilities arc recognized at fair value on :ni_tial recognition. exc~pt for trade 
receivables wll icl1 are initia lly mcasur('d at transaction price. Transaction costs ~-~ · attributable to the 
ac uisitiou c,r issue of finam:ial 2ssets ,md l'inancial liabilities, which are not at h prdit ::>r los~-. arc 

air \'alw! on initial rccog.nition. T ran~at'tion C<htS Girectiy attribt 1isitio11 of linanci<"il 
c ial lia bil ities ~l fair value t!;rc,ugh profit or loss are recc,gnized i111 'it or loss. 

c la~~ities its financ ial assel:-; in the fo llowi ng measurement catego 
Ul'-l lf<'d subsequcn:l:-, al fa ir value (either through other comprch . or thr0ur.h profit 0 r 

- those mcasuri;d at amortised cost. L _____ _ _ __ j 



t :-:-fn~-cla~S'ificatio11 Jcpends on emity's busi11~;ss :;od~~! for ~na11~;ing the financinl assets and the co11tractu·~~~1~ 
- . the cash now. II 

For assets 11,easur~rl :1t fo ir v.tiuc. ~f:in~ and loS!',tS v,i !I either b1~ recorded in profit or loss or other comprehc:nsivc 
income. For investments in debt instrumcms this wil l dept!nd on the business model in wh ich the investment is heid. / 
For investm•..:nts in equity insm1111cnt5, th is will depend on whether the Compan) has 111adc an irrevocable e lection m / 
the ti111 e of initial recogn it ion to account for i h C equity i11\'cst:11e11t at fa ir value through other comprehe·nsivc i11c0mc. i 

I 

T"hc ( '0111pany rec:assifics debt iuvest1nc111s ,vhen and only "vhen its business ,nodel for 111<1naging those nsscts ; 
changes. 
Recognition 
Regu!ar way purchases and salt's of fi 11,rnci,1I a!'>set~ are rcco::;n ised 011 trade-date. th<:' date on which the Company 
co11rn1its to purchase or sa le the fi nancial asset. 

S ubsequent Meas ure ment 
Debt Instrumen ts 
i) Financial Assets carried ar Amortized Cost 
r\ financial :issct is subsequently meas11red J.L amortized cost if it is held within a business model whose nbjecti\·e is 
tu hold the a:;sd in order lo ee l le-et contraciual cash flows and the contractual tcnns of the ftnanc ia l asset give ri:;e on 
~pecified dal;;s to cash flows that nre sole ly payments ofpri ncipa: and interest u11 the principal amount outstanding. 
interest income from rhese financ ial asset:; r:; inc l,1dcd in other income us ing the d'fec:tive imerest rat,;> 1nethod. Any 
ga in or loss a1 ising on den:cognition is r:!cognised dire.;tly in profit or loss. Impairmen t losses art: presented ::1s a 
separa;e line item i11 statement of profit nnd lo~;s. 
i i) Financial .-\ sscts at .Fair V alue th roug h Other Comprehensive Income 
A linanci~I asst:! i~ s1;bsequen tly measured at fair value through other compn~hensivc income if it is; held within a 
busi1~ s5 nwdd ,\h•.)Se objective is ach ieved by both co!lt:cting contrnctual cash nows and sell iHg financial asset:; and 
the contractual tcrn1s of th<.: financial :isset give rise nn specified dates to cash nows that are solely pay1111;:11ts of 
principal and interest on the principal amopnt outstanding. The Company has made an irrevocable election fo r its 
invcstm,~nts wh ich arc classiiied ns equ1ry instruments to present the subsequent changes in fa ir val11e in other 
L·o1;1prehensive income based on its bw;incs·; model. 
Movements in tile carryi ng a1w.Hint are taken through OC!, except for the recognition of impairmcut Ja ins or loi.ses. 
inrcrest revcnu,; a11d fore ign exchange gains a11d losses which are recogn ized 111 profit and loss. 'When the finnncial 
asse: i~ der~~cogn il'.<:d, the cunwlative gain or loss preYiously recogn:zect in ()Cl is r,~classificd fhim equity tn the 
!-.CatemGnt of pro Ii i and loss and !·ccognised under other income/ other expenses. Interest income from tltesc financin l 
assets is included in other income 11s ing the effective interest rate method. 

i ii) Financial A:;M:ts m Fair· \'~J11e th rnugh Profi t or Loss 

Assets that do not meet the c!·itcria for amortiz.cc.i cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value through pro fil or loss. f\ 
~ain or loss on a debt investment thnr is sub-;equently measured at fair value through profit or loss and is not pan of a 
lh:dging n:l;itioriship is recogniLP.d i:1 r,rofit or loss and pre:-ented net in the statement of profit and lo:.s in the pi:riod 
11 whid1 it n.-i s•c:-: !ntcrcst inccime from these financial assets is included in other income. 

iv) Equity !nsln1111ents 
The Company subsequently meas11res a ll equity investments at fair value. Where the C:ompnny has elected 10 pr-~sent 
f;.1ir value gains and losses on eq uity investments in other comprehensive income. there is no 5t1bscq11em 
redassi fication of fa ir value ga ins :ind l•)sses to profit or loss :ollowing the derecognition of the investment. Divicknds 
frQJll such invcst111c11!s are recognized in pro lit or loss as other income when the Company's right to receive payments 
is established. Changes in the fair ,'alue of financial asser:, at fa ir value through profi1 or loss are recog11ih 'd i,1 the 
-;tatcment of µrofil and loss. lmpairment los:;cs (and reversal c~f impa irment losses) 011 equ ity investments mem,urd 
a! FVOCI are not rcport..:d separa1dy fro!11 other changes in fo ir value. 

v) Impairment o f Financia l .<\sscts 

The Company rccugnizes loss allowances ui;ing the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the fina11ci:i l assets which 
are n0t f:.1 ir \'alucd through profit or loss. ~.oss al lowance for trade receivables with no sign ificant financing con1 pt1nc11i• 
is measured nt an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For a:! other fornncial assets, ECLs Ml' measured at a11 amount equal 
10 the 12-month ECL, unless lhl're has ber·n a :;ignitic::mt increase in c redit risk from initial recognition in wh i~h ,;asc 
those are measured at lifetime ECL, as applicable, as ti1e case may be. The amount of ECLs (or rt1.1,...,...~ ". if an. )that 
1s ret · ad.iust the los~ al!owancr at tile reporting date to the amount !hat is requir <100~:re-..;CQt~ is 

1~~ (§w~ imp<1inncnt g;1in or lo::s in 1hc profit or loss. 

")' '::i i Chennai • 14 c: 
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Fi1 ·'R ½ · ifil and t::quiry i11;;(n11:1ents is~11cd by a Company are c lassified as either financ:ia .__-'-,...,0; :· as L'qui:y 
in ac ·~ ith the substa11c~· (,r the- contrncrual arrangements and the defi nitions of a f:nanc 1:1_ ,1ahi li t,v ai,J an 
cqu i1y inst ru111c11t. 



' . 
r--1 --n~a~~cial' liabili t'i~~~-e sub:-;c~-lll:l;-;;~--~Jrn:~;i-~~--~l~~~~; i-;~--C05t usin~ the e riective interest method, exce~~lor I 
• co11li11gent rnnsideration rt:, O!', ll1zcd in a lmsi11c<;s C•Jrn bi,iation, which is subsequently measured at fn ir value thr,Jugl1 1 

pr<1fit or loss. For trade and other p«yables nrnturing with in one year from t!ic Bnlance Sheet date, the carrying amounts 
appro., i111atc rair value due to the short rn.1tu:·i~y o f thc~e insta1menrs. 

Yii) Dl·rccognition or Financi.l'l l I n~trumc11. ts 
Financial Ast;ct 
A financial asset b derecogniL~cl enly when 
- tile Company has transrerrcd the rights t-:• n:c'.:' i·1e cash f~,-1ws from the financial asset or 
- retains the cnntractual rights to i-ec.:eive the cash f!0,, s f.'1 tl1t, ti nancial asset. but assumes a contractu:11 obl igat k1n 10 
pay ,he cash llo,, s to ont; or more rccij:' icnta. 
Whcr•:: the entity has tra11sferred ,11' asset, the Comprin1 •~va luates wheth;;:r it has transforrccl substantially a ll risk:; a1~d 
rl'.wards of uwnership of the fi nanc ia i asset In such c;;scs. the financial asset is dr-recognized . Where tlw cntit:1 has 
11t'l tra11srcrrccl 5ubstantially a ll risks :rnd rc,~·ards of ownership of the li11ancial ac,:;et, the financial asset i:; no t 
Jerccognized . 
Where the entity has neither transferred a fi11ancial asset nor retains substm11ially all risks and rewards or ow11ership 
1)f' 1h<.:! fi nancia l assl.:t. the financ ia l asset is dc recogn:zed iftlie Com pany has not retained control of the lin:rncial assel. 
Where the Cc,mpany retains control vf the financia l asset, the asset _is continued to be recognized h• the extent o f 
conti nu ing in,·olvcment in the iin:mcial asset. 
Financial Liability 
A financ ial liability is dcrcc.:ogniz1:d ,v+.en th~ obligation specified in the c.:ontract is discharged. cancelled or expires. 

j . Leases 
The comp:111~ a.,:;cs::;e~ \\'l\l~the1 :.i con1 r.:1c t contains a lease at the inc.:eption 01· the contract. A contract is. o r 
co11lains. a !,:,!~C ii' the contract co1!vey•. the right 10 control the use of an idrnti ficd asset tor a period o f time in 
e"-chang<c: fi.1r consideration. To cssess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset. 
the co111p,;111_ 1 a~~csse~ whether (i) the contracr. involves the use of an identified a%et (ii) the cornpany has 
. ubstant ia I I) al I or ihe 1~ccnom ic bendits from the use of the asset through the pl.!riod of the lease and (iii) the 
co:np::tt~' h~b th•, ri;.:!1110 ~;ir.;:,ct th~ ~1se J f,hc asset. Th<: r:ompany has ;;pplicd the exemption 01'11ot to recognize 
R ightto Use: a<.sets and i iabi i it ies fer leases "'ith less than 12 months of leas-: term on the date of initia l appl ic,ll ion 
as a pr,1c1ical e:xpcdicn:.:y. !'1)~ these sh<1:·! term a11<l low valu<: leases, the Compan:,· recognises the leas~ payments 
dS :in op~•.r:it:n~: e>.pensc :,n ,! ~trnight li11c ba, i.; ,:,ver the k rnt of the lca~;e. 

k. I n v l!ll torics 
I nventoric:; ( ra\, marcri.i l - components ind11ding as5emblies and sub assemblies) ar,! stated at the lower Dr cost a11d 
net rt:alisali!e "ah:e. Co:-r or i11vento11 incluck.;; c.:ost of purchases a11d all other C'•Jsts incurred in bringing the 
inventori•~s to their pre~cnt luc.:at ion :inci c:ond it·ion. Cosls are assigned ro indi vidual items 0r inventory on 1he bai:is of 
\\Cigh tcd avcrn~I:' n1e1hod. Net real isable va lm.: is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of busines~ icss 
the estimated c.:s _, o f compktion :111d the ei;tim~tt~d costs necessary to make lhc sale. 

l. T rade R<~cci,;ablcs 
rracle !·eceivab!c!:, are amounts due from custom·ers for goods sold or services pcrtonned in the ordinnr:, cour-;e o r 
business and re flects comp:tn) ·s 1111cond i1iollal right to consideration (thar is, pnyment is due only on the passage of 
time). Trade receivables arc recognised in itia lly at the transaction price as they Jo nor contain significant fin c1 11cing 
components. The company holds the trade rece ivables with the objective of collecting the contractual cash flows and 
therefore measures them suhst:q uently a t amortised cost using the effective intnt:st method, less loss a llowance. 
1·1ic Compan~. c lassifies the right to con:;i(leration i11 exchange for deliverables as •~ither a receivable· or :is unbilled 
rcvenw.:. 
'-\ rccei,abk is a right to consideration 1hat i:; conditio lla l on ly upon passage oftinie. Revenue in c:-:cess of billing'- is 
r\:cordcd as unbillcd revt:nue and is classi li~·d a:; a fi nanc ial asset as onl: ' the ~>a'.;sage of time is required before the 
paymcni is ci11e . J11vnic ing, in --=~cess of c,_1rn i11g~. are c!assifi1~d as contract liabilities which is disclosed as deferred 
re1:e11uc . 
Trade rece i, ables and !l!lbiiled revenue ;ire prese,1,~d 11el of in1pairment in the Balance Sheet._ 

m. Tnu!i: Payabll's 
1'11!::se amounts represent liabili ties for g0l)d$ and services provided to the Company prior 1cial year 

>aid . The amounl :; l:ll'C ust.:rd l~ 1111secur~d. Trade payables arc presented a cs uJJ!css 
L due within twelh~ rnomhs ri(tcr the rcpQrt ing period. They are recognized ·air ,·aiu~ 
tly measured :11 a1111)rtised cost using the effective interest method. 



'' 1··----------------------- ------
: n. · Borrowings · 

~ · Borfowings ar~ initially rC<.:ilg.nized at fair value. nt'I or transaction costs incurred. Borrowings arc subsequently 
111t:asurecl at an 1ort i::-ed cost. I\ n:I' di ff~re11c.:e bet we<.:11 t I 1t: proceeds ( net of trans?.ctton costs) and the red em pt ion 11mou11t 
is n.:cugni, e<.I in profit or loss ov~r Ilic period o f the borro\vings using the effective interest method. Fees paid 0 11 the 
cstabl 1~hme11t or 101111 foci lities arc recognized as , rnnsn:;tinn costs of the loan to rile extent that it is probable that ~ome 
nr all of the fac ility will be drawn down 111 thi~ rnsc, the fol:! is deferred unt il the drnw down occurs. To the e'>:tent 
there is no evidem:e that it is probable that :;orne or a l! of the fac ility will be drawn down. the fee is ,;apitalized as a 
prepay1m·nt for liquidity services ond anwrtised O\'er the period of the facili~.y H.l v. hicl1 it relates. 
Borrowings are removed from lhc balance ~beet w:1cn the obligation specific:d in lhc contract is discharged, cancelled 
or expired. The di fte rence bet,\·(;en the carry mg amount of a !"inancial I iabi lity that has been extinguished or transforred 
lo another part) and the c.:onsi,k ration paid, inc luding any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is 
r·~co:511 ised i11 Statcmem nf pr•.lf'i t and los:; under other t~;\'.pcnses. 
Borrowings are c lassified as current liabiliti,~s unk~ss the Con,pany has an unconditional right to defer settleme11t L' f 
the I ic1bility !'or at least 12 month:; after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of material prO\ is ion or a long 
term l0a11 arrangement 011 or before the date of the rcpo1t i11g period with the P.ffcct that the liability becomes payable 
,111 uern:rnd 0 11 the rep,11ting date, the Com pan~ do<:s not classify the liability as current if the lender agreed, afkr the 
rep,1rting pe:·iocl and before approval of the financial statements for issue, 1101 to <lcmand payment as a consequence 
or the brcl.lch . 

o. .Exceptional items 
When an ite111 of i11-.::ome or t:xpense within :;tatement of profit and loss from ordinary activity is of s11ch size. nature 
,1r incidence that ;,5 disclci~urc i:-, relc\. ,lll l lo expbin the performance of the Company for the year, tile nature and 
.1mou1n of' such :,,_,,,, is c:i~ck•~ed as exceptio11a: items. 

----- Space is left intentionally blank--------



Prn jJcrty, Plant and Equipme nt 
Tangible Assets ..... ------- ------·------
Description 

G ross Block 
Ba la nce as at 31s t Marci, 2022 
Deletions 

Ba lance as at 31st March 2023 

Accum ulated Dcpn:ciation 
Bala nce as at 31st March 2022 
Clwrgc for the yl.!;1r 

Disposals 
Balance as at 31st March 2023 

Ncl Block 

Bala nce as al 31s t March 2023 
Ba la nce as at 31s t March 2022 

5. Lo:111s-No11-Cu1Tent 
(Unsecured 011d considered good) 

Loans and advances to Related parties 
Tolal 

p taut& 
Ma chinery 

1,44,719 
-

1,44.719 

59,894 
9,73 1 

-
69,625 

75,095 
84,826 

Furniture 

26 
(26) 
-

20 
I 

(21) 

-

-
6 

Motor 
Vehicle 

68 
-

68 

27 
11 

-
38 

30 
41 

As at 
31-Mar-23 

8.981 
8,981 

(/?:,. Jn '000) 

Total 

1,44,814 
(26) 

1,44,788 

59,941 
9,743 

(2 1) 
69,663 

75,125 
84,872 

As at 
31-Mar-22 

Inter Corpora te Loans are given fo r working capital requirements. The loan carries an interest rnte of 8% per 
a1111u111 on the 011tsta11di n~ amounr. (Refer note 27) 

6. Inventories 
Stock-in-Trade 
Total 

7. Trncle Rcccivahle 
(U11sec11red (II/(/ ( '011sidered Guod) 
T rade Receivables 
Total 

190 
190 

47.502 47,802 
47,502 47,802 

Ageing of Trade Receivables: ,-=:!====!:=========o':======~------ ----,-----------------------
Outstantlin • for followin criods from due date of l3)'1ll_cnt 

Less than 6 6 Months 3 years 
Months -l Year 1-2 years 2-3 years and :ibove Total 

Particulars 

As at 3 1st March 2023 
( i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 46,929 573 47.502 
T otal 46,929 573 47,502 
As at 3 1st March 2022 

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables -- considered !$_oo..:.d _ _ +-__ 7,'-6..:.00-+ __ 3..:..4_7_0+-_1_8..:..,9..:.5_1_1-_l 5..:.,7_6_3-+-_ _ 2..:..,0_1_8-+-4_7..:.,_80_2--l 
'-T_o_t,_1 ! ___ ____ ______ ----'---7..:.,6~0:....;.0...J...._---'-3-'-,4_7..::..0-'--_1_8,'-9_5_1 _..___15..:., 7_6_3--'-_2,018 · 47 2 1 

8. C as h a nd Cash Eq uivalent 
Cash on hand 

. - 1ks 

Accounts 168 

I 
I 

epos its 
Equivalents as per Balance Sh1:el 168 183 

l68 183 



- ---------------------------- ---------

9. Other Financial Assets - Current 
Interest Accrued not due 

Others 

Total 

10. Ot her Current Assets 
I U11ser.:11red a11d C ·onsiclered Gooc/J 
lhilance with Govt. Authorities 
Others 

Total 

ll. Share Capital 

As at 
31 -Mar-23 

As at 

137 

190 

10 
362 
.372 

(Rs. /11 '000,i 
As at 

3!-Mar-22 

As at 

53 
53 

9 

34 1 

JSO 

31 March 2023 31 March 2022 
Authorised 
I 0.000 Equity Shares ofz I 0 each 

fssued, Subscribed and Paid up 
10.000 Eq uity Shares of ~ 10 each 

a. Reco11cili1tlin11 of the shares O/l(S(ltlldi11g 
he;:i1111i11g and at the end of tfte reporting period 

Eq11i(r Shares 
At the commencement of the year 
Shares issued during the :,;ear 

At the end of the year 

100 

100 

100 

100 

(If the 3 1 March 2023 
Number Amount 

10,000 100 

10,000 100 

/;.Ri~!tt.~·, prej ereuces aud restrictions atlacl,ed to equity shares 

100 

100 

100 
JOO 

3 1 March 2022 
Number Amount 

10,000 100 

10,000 100 

The company ha:,. a s ingle c lass of equity shares. Accordingly, a ll eq uity s hares ra nk eq ua lly vvith regard 

tu di v idends a nd s hare in the company's re s id ual assets. The equity s hares are entitled to receive divide nd 
as dec lared from time to time after subject to dividend to prefere nce s hareholders . T he , ·oti ng rights ofan 
eq uity s harehold!c'r on a poll (no t s ho w o f hands) a re in proportio n to its share of the pa id-up equi~y capita l 
o f the company. 

O n wi nding up or the c ompa ny. the holder of equity shares wi ll be entitle d to rece ive the resid ua l assets of 
the c o mpany. rema ining a Her dis tributio n o f a ll pre ferentia l amounts in pro po 11ion to the numbe r o f equity 
s ha res held . 

c. Particulars ofs/Jareftolders holdi11g more tlum 
5% sl,ares (!{ a class of shares 

l:quity shares on 10 each fully paid held by 
.Refcx Green Power Limited* 

.,;;: . 

31 March 2023 
Num ber (% of total 

shares) 

7,400 74% 
2,600 26% 

10,000 100% 

31 March 2022 
Number (

0
/., of total 
S h~11-1!S) 

7,400 74% 
2.600 ?.6% 

10,000 IIIOo/4, 



31 March 2023 31 March 2022 ___ 
(Rs. h, '0019 J 

d. P11rtic:11/ars ofslwrelwldi11g tl Promoters Number (% of (% of change in Numbrr (°/4, of (
1X1 of change in 

total shares during the total shares during the 
shares) year) shares) year) 

Equity shares on I O ~ach fully paid held by 
Retcx Green Power Limited* 7.400 74% 0% 7,400 74% 0% 
Rajamma 1,600 26% 0% 2,600 26% 0% 

I IJ,000 JOO% 0% 10,000 100% 0'1/c, 

*With effect from 5th May 2022, rhe name of the Company was changed from S[L Rooftop Solar Power Private Limited 
to Refcx Green Power Private Limited. Further with effect from I 0th May 2023. the name of the Company was changed 
from Rdcx G reen P,m cr Pri\'ate Limited ro "Refcx Green Power Limited". 

12. Other Equity 

Retained Earnings 

Equ ity component of OCPS I OCD 
Total 

A RETAINED EARNJNGS 
Opening Balance 

Add : Surplus/Loss during the year 
Closing Balance 

B EQUITY COMPONENT OF COMPOUND FlNANCIAL 
INSTRUMENT 
Opening balance 

Acid: Shares / debentures issued during the year 
Less: Debentures redeemed during the year 

Less: Liability component ofOCPS / OCD 
Closing Balann · 

Total 

As at 
31-Mar-23 

(25.132) 
1,22,895 

97,763 

As at 
31-Mar--22 

(22.326) 
1,29,5 12 
1,07,186 

(22,326) (24,291) 

(2,806) 1,965 --- ----'---------------(25,132) (22,326) 

1,29.5 12 

6,6 17 

1,22,895 

97,763 

1,22.895 
10,653 
2,029 
2,006 

1,29,512 
1,07,186 

The compound financial instrument re lates to the Optiona lly conve11ible preference shares ('OC PS') and Optionally 
convertib le deben tures ('OCD') issued by the company. 

Optionallv Conve rtible Preference Shares ('OCPS'): 

Aut horised share capital 
1.99. 90.000 Preference shares of ~ I O each 

lssuc<I, Subscribed and Paid up share capital 
1A6.70A89 Optional ly Conv8rtible Preference Shares 
on 10 each 

As at 

31 Ma rch 2023 

19,99,00.000 

19,99,00,000 

14,67,04,890 

14,67 ,04,890 

As at 

31 March 2022 

19,99,00,000 
19,99,00,000 

14.67,04.890 

J 4,67 ,04,890 

a.Reco11c:iliatio11 of tire shares outstant(ing at tire 31 March 2023 --"'-------------------------31 March 2022 
he 1i1111i1 ° mu! at the em f of t!te reporti, Number 

tih/e Preference Sha 
11ent ol' the year 1,46. 70,489 

Amount Number 

14,67,04,890 1.46,70,489 
ng the year 

Amoun t 

1 
14.67.0-1.390 l 

'SI+--------------------- I 
1,46,70,489 14,6 7,04,890 ycu 1,46,70,489 14,67,04,890_1 



(Rs. /11 '000) 
/J.Rir:hts, preference.~· and restrictions a/lached to preference shares 
0.0 I % Optionally convertible non-cumulative preference shares \\ere issued in the month of August' 20 ( 14670-189 Shares ('.!_ 
Rs. I 0) pursuant to the share holders agreement. Optionally convertible non - cumulative preference shares are convc11ible into 
equity share of par value Rs. I 0/- in the rat io of I: I. 
These preference shares are convertible al any time on or before the end of nineteenth year from the date of issuance at the 
option or the company. Preference shares shall be mandatorily converted to equity shares upon completion of a period of 19 
years and 11 months from the date of issuance and allotment of such preference shares. The holders of these shares arc entitled 
to a non-cumulative dividend 0.01 %. Preference shares carry a preferential right as to dividend over equ ity shareholders . The 
preference shares arc entitled 10 one vote per share at meetings of the Company on any resolutions of the Company directly 
involving their rights. 

c.Particulars of slwrelwlden; holding more 
than 5 % slwres ofa class of.,;/wres 

Re rex Green Power Limited* 

*(Refer note 27) 

Optionallv Convertible Debentures ('OCD'): 

3 J March 2023 
umbe r 

1.46.70,489 
1,46, 70,489 

'1/o 

100% 

3 1 March 2022 

'umber 

1,46.70.489 
100'1/c, 1,46,70,489 

3 1 March 2023 3 1 March 2022 

100% 
100% 

Number Amount Number Amount 
Iss ue d, Subscribed and P~1id up 

O ptiona lly Conve rtible Debentures of~ I O each 8.62.326 
8,62,326 

3 1 March2023 31 March 2022 a.Recoud /iation of the debentures 011tsta11di11g at the -------------------
he g i 1111 i II g and at the emf of the reporting period 

Opti_o11al~)' co11verfit,/e Debe11l11re.,· 

At the commencement of the year 

Debentures issued during the year 

Debentures redeemed during the year 
At the e nd o f the year 

umber 

8.62.326 

8.62.326 

b.Righl.,·, prefere 11ces t111d restric tion.\· t1llached to debe11t11res 

Amount 

8.623 

8,623 

umber Amount 

10.65.274 10.653 
2,02.948 2,029 

8,62 ,326 8 ,623 

8.623 
8,623 

0.01 % Optiona lly conve rtible debentures we re issued in the month or Ma rch '22 ( I 065274 debentures @ 
Rs. I 0) pursuant to the debenture holder's agreement. Optionally conve rtible debentures arc convertible 
inro equity sha re o f par va lue Rs. I 0/- in the ratio o r I :I. In the month o f March '22. 202948 debentures 

were redeemed by the holder a t issue price. Furthe r in the 111011th of .lune '22. 117968 a nd in the month o r 
Scpte mbe r'22, 744358 debentures were redeemed by the holder a t issue price. 

These debentures a re convertible at any time on o r before the e nd of nineteenth year from the date or 
issuance at the option of the holde r. T he holders o r these debentures a re entitled to an interest of 0.0 I% on 
par va lue o f debentures. The debenture holders a rc entitled to one vote per debenture at meetings or the 
Company on any resolutions of the Compa ny directly involving their rights . 

c.Particulars of d ebe11t11relwlde rs lwldi11g m ore than 
5 % shares of a class of d ebenture.,; 

Refex Green Power Limited* 

*(Refer note 27) 

3 1 March 2023 31 March 2022 
umbe r '1/o Number 

0% 8,62,326 100% 
0'1/o 8 



I 3. Borrowings 
UNSECURED 
Liabi l ity component ofOCPS / OCD 

Total 
(Refer note 12) 

14. Trade Payable Due to 
M icro and Small l~ntcrprisc 

Other than Micro and Smal l Enterprise 

Tota l 

,\!!Cin° of Trade Pavablcs: .. 

As a t 

3 1-Ma r-23 

32,058 
32,058 

161 
7 

167 

(Rs. In ·OOO) 7 
As at 

3 I-Mar-22 

30,708 
30,708 

57 
870 
927 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 
Particulars 

As at 31st March 2023 
(i) MSME 
(ii) Others 

Total 
,\sat 31st March 2022 
(i) ~ISME 
(ii) Others 

Total 

(Refer Note 28) 

15. Other Financ ia l Lia hilities - C ur rent 
Payable to Farml!r* 
Other Payables 

Tota l 
*(Refer Note 3 1) 

16. O ther C u .-rent Liabilities 
Statutory Dues ((iST, TDS, etc.,) 

T otal 

17. Revenue from Operations 
Sale or Pov.er 
Total 

J 8. Othe1· I ncomc 
Interest Income 

Other Income 
Total 

19. Purchase of S tock- In-T rade 
Purchases 
Total 

Less than one 
vcar 

161 
7 

167 -

57 
16 
73 

2 ~;w!{f.4 nvento r ies of Finished Goods. /\.11( ·:~~»-... de 

1tory 
tory 

l-2 years 

-
-
-

-
-

-

2-3 years 

-
-

-

-
854 
854 

6,933 
138 

7,071 

For the Y car ended 
31-Mar-23 

20.954 
20.954 

291 
899 

1,190 

190 
190 

190 
(190) 

3 years and 
Total 

above 

- 161 

- 7 
- 167 

- 57 
- 870 
- 927 

105 
1(15 

4 
4 

For the Year ended 
31-Mar-22 

19,810 
19,81 0 

212 
212 



2 1. Employee Benefit Expenses 
Salaries and wages 
Staff Welfare 
Total 

22. Finance Cost 
Interest cost 

! 111eres1 on lnrer Corporure Deposits 

lmaest on Finuncial Liabi/iry - OCD 

/111erest on Financial Liability - OCPS 
Total 

23. Depreciation & A mortisation 
Depreciation 

Total 

24. Other Expenses 
Rates and Taxes 
Loss on Sa le of Fixed Assets 
Bank Charges 
Profess ional Fees 
Payment to Auditors 

Trave lling Expenses 
O perations and Maintenance 
Rebate 

Payment lo Farmer* 

Insurance Expenses 

Mis eel laneous [xpenses 
Total 

Payment to Aud itors 
Statutory Audit 
Certification and Other Charges 

* Refer Note 3 I 

25. Tax Expenses 
Current Tax 

Deferred Tax 

Tax reported in Profit & Loss 

A Deferred Tax Liabiltics/ (Assets) - Net 
Deferred Tax Liabilities 

Fixed assets: Impact of d ifference between tax depreciation and 
depreciation/amortisation for financ ial reporting 

C'...~oss Deferred Tax Liability 

~ ~-';..'=._'::~ . ~~•~x .,;.A;:;;;S;:.;.SC::.:t;;:,S 
ets at amortized cost 

vard Unabsorbed Depn L.osse!, 
-red Tax Assets 
d Tax Liability/ (Asset) 

For the Yea r ended 
31-Mar-23 

233 
13 

245 

3.401 

33 
3,368 

.3.401 

9,743 
9,743 

5 
5 

29 
27 

275 
82 

2,010 
514 

6,933 
426 
11 9 

10,424 

2 10 
65 

275 

(Rs. In ·oOO) 
For the Y car ended 

31-1\lar-22 

163 

163 

3.638 
6fl 

12 

3,015 

3,638 

10.615 
10.615 

16 

16 
129 
257 
1-14 

1.:358 
43 

237 
11 8 

2,366 

195 
62 

257 ----------------

I, 137 1,275 
1,137 1,275 

As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022 

16.549 
16,549 

2 1,182 
21,182 

(4,633) 

18.007 
18,00'7 I 

l 
23.7T7 I 
23,77~ 
(5,770) 

----------------------------------------------



B Reconciliation ofDefcrred Tax liabilih• 
Opening Deferred Tax Laibility 

Deferred Credit recorded in Statement of Profit & Loss 
Deferred Tax c hange recorded in OCI 
C los ing Defet-red Tax Liability/{Assct)- Net 

26. Earnings Per Share (EPS) 

a. Weighted average number of equity shares 
outstanding during the period 
b.Effect of dilutive common equiva lent shares -
Optionally Convertible Debentures 
c. Effect of dilutive common equivalent shares -
Optiona lly Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares 
d. weighted average number of equity shares and 
common equ ivalent shares outstanding 

Diluted Earnings 
Profit After Tax 
Add: Interest on Financ ia l Liabil ity - OCPS 
Add: Inte rest on Financ ial Liability - OCD 
Total Di lutive Earnings 

Earnings per eq uity share (of face value of Rs. I O each) 
Basic 
Diluted* 

(5,770) 

1.1 37 

(4,633) 

As at 
31-Mar-23 

10,000 

1.46,70,489 

1,46,80,489 

(2,806) 
3.368 

33 
595 

(280.60) 
(280.60) 

(7,045) 

1.275 

(5,770) 

As at 
31-Mar-22 

10.000 

66.15 I 
1,46,70.489 

1,47,46,640 

1,965 
3.015 

12 
4,992 

196.49 
0.34 

*As the company has incurred loss during the year ended 31 March 2023. di lutive effect on weighted average number of 
shares would have an anti-di lutive impact and hence, not considered in Diluted EPS computation. 

27. Related Party Transactions 

A. List of Related Parties 1 

N ameo f t I t I t 1e re a e< party an 
Nature of Relationship 

Ultimate Holding Company 

Holding Company 

d 

Entities in wh ich share holders / 
directors exert significant 
influence 

Key Managerial Personne l 

Directors 

nature o f I • re attons 11n 
Name of the Related Part)• 

Refex Renewables & Infrastructure Li mited2 

Refex Green Power Limited' 

Sherisha Technolgies Private Limited 

Megamic Electronics Private Limited 

Suvas Chandra Parida (CEO & CFO) (appointed w.e.f 
30.03.2023) 
Priyanka Rajcndra Mudal iyar (appointed w.e.f 12.04.2023) . 

Patrik Yijay Kumar Francis Arun Kumar ~ ~ Rajamma / "{'o/ ~( 

Dinesh Kumar Agarwal I --,.. (FRM:01G_ n ....... _., ... ..,,; ,ss lll I 
. 14 c 

-~ -!J 
1 as identified by the management and rel ied upon by the auditors 

'?! ~(:-
0red Acco - I 

I",.__~ PO 1 effect from 25th October 2022. the name o f the Company was changed from ·S~ 1edisQJ1-. . .! 
J/ ~ cture Limited' to "Refex Renewables & Infrastructure Limited'' 

fir 3 Wi ·< feet from 5th May 2022. the name of the Company was changed from ·SIL Roo~op Solar Power 
~ Pri I tt1 imited ' to " Refex Green Power Private Limited''. Further with effect from 10th May 2023, the 

oto11.1.1~ f the Company was changed from 'Refex Green Power Private Limited' to "Refcx Green Power 
1Tfited" 



-' ' (Rs. /11 '000) I 
' 

B. Transactions with Related Pa1·tics 

For the year For the year 
Nature of the Transaction Name of Related Party ,·nded March 31, ended l\1arch31, I 

2023 2022 --Debentures Issued (Issue Price) Refex Green Power Limited - 10.653 
Debentures Redeemed (Redemption 

8.623 2.029 Price) Refex Green Power Limited 
Interes t Income Refex Gr~en Power Limited 290 -
lnrerest Exoense Refex Green Power Limited - 611 
Reimbursement of Exnenses Sherisha Technol!lies Private Limited 13 -
Payment for Farmer's Share Raiamnia 6,933 -
Ooeration & Maintenance Charges Refex R{:newables & Infrastructure Limited 1,408 IJ41 
Reoairs & Maintenance Me1~amic Electronics Private Limited - 35 
Capital Work-in-progress Refex Rcnewables & Infrastructure Limited - ~~., 

.) .) .) 

Loan Advanced Refex Green PO\ver Limited 10,282 -~ 
Loan Repavment Received Refex Green Power Limited 1,300 2AOO 
Loan Repaid Re fex Green Power Limited 4 15 5.653 
Loan Borrowed Refex Green Power Limited 4 15 

·-
9.986 

c. Balance at Year End 

For the year For the year 
Nature ofthc Transaction Name of Related Party e nded March ended March 

31, 2023 31,2022 
Creditors Refex Rcnewables & Infrastructure Limit 115 -
Creditors Mep_amic Electronics Private Limited - 20 
Other Payable Rajamma 6,933 -
Loan Receivable Refex Green Power Limited 8,981 -
Interest Receivable Refox Green Power Limited 137 -

28. Disclosures required under Section 22 of lhe Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 

The management lws identified certain enterprises which have provided goods and services to the Company, and which 
qualify under the defi nition of 'Micro and Small Enterprises' as defined under Micro. Small and Medium Enterprises 
Development Act. 2006 ("the Act"). Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amounts payable to such enterprises 
as at 3 I st March 2023 and 31 st March 2022 have been made in the financial statements based on information ava ilable 
with the Company and relied upon by the auditors. 

Particulars As at As a1 
31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

(i) Principal amount rema ining unpa id to an:r supplier as 
161 57 al the end of the accounting year 

(ii) Inte rest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier 
as at the end of the accounting year - -

(ii i) The nmou111 of interest paid along with the amounts 
or the payment made to the supplier beyond the - -
appo inted day 
(iv) The amount of interest due and payable for the year - -
(v) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid 

Ql ~~\~fthe accounting year 
- - -

~c,D & c <(-i-~: _ :, ount or further interest due and payable even ~ 0 

I J'gxd;ng ym. unt;J s nch date when the ;nte,esl * * - I g FRN:016415S Cl) -
i ucs a~ c an..: actually paid Chennal - 14 c 

~ ~ 0<Y~o'}.~ ~ ~~ 
.,.ed Acc0 - -- I 



29. Fair Value Measurements 

A. Financial Instr ument by Category 

Part icu lars 

Financia I Assets 

Trade Receivables 
Cash and cash equivak:nr~ 
Lonns 
Other Financial Assets 
TOT AL ASSETS 

Financial Liabilities 
Borrowings 
Trade Payable 

As al 31 March 2023 
FVPL FVOCJ Amortised cost Level I 

47,502 

168 
8,981 

190 
56,842 

32,058 

167 

7,071 

Fair value hierarchy 
Level 11 Level 111 

Other Financial Liabilities 
TOTAL LIABILITIES --·----- ----=-3~9,~29;..;6;__ ____________ _ 

r~1rticulars 

Financia l Assets 

Trade Rcc,: ivabks 
Cash and cash equivaknts 
Other Financial /\ssct~ 
TOT AL ASSETS 

Financial Liabilities 
Borrowings 
Trade Payable 
Other Financial Liabilities 
TOTAL LIABILIT IES 

Fai,· value hierarchy 

As at 3 1 March 2022 
FVPL FVOCI Amortised cost Level I 

47,802 
183 

53 

48,038 

30,708 
927 
105 

31 740 

Level I - Quoted prices (unad_justed) in acti ve markets for identical assets or liabil ities. 

Fair va lue hierarchy 
Level II Leve_l"""l ... 1 ... 1 __ 

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level I that are observable for the asset or liability, either 
directly (i.e. as prices ) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). 
Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based 0 11 observable market data (unobservable inputs). 

B. Financial risk management 

The Company"s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, !iquidity risk and foreign currency risk. 
The Company·s primary focus is to foresee lhc unpredictability of fi nancial markets and seek to minimize polcntial 
adverse effects on its financial performance. The primary risks to the Company are credit and _liquidity risl-.. 
The Board of Directors rev iews and ngrees policies for managing each of these risks, whicl · eel 
bel , . 

.,,,-::;.=~ 

I . 

sk of fi nancial loss to the company if a customer or counterparty to a · n...- .r nt fa ils to 
111 -~=~;.,-: I obl igations and arises principally from the company·s receivables from 111ves1ment 

risk arises from cash held \\. ith banks and financial institut ions, as we ll as credit exposure to clients. 



in'ctuding·~utstanding accounts receivable. The maximum expli:.ure to credit risk is equal to the carry ing vnl ue of thl.! 
· 1i11andal assets. The objective of managing counterparty credit. risk is to prevent losses in financia l assets. The company 

assesses the credit quality of the counterpa1t ies. taking into account their fi nancial position. past experience and other 
foctors. 

The carrying amount offinnncial asset$ represents the maximum credit ex posure which is as fol lows: 
(Rs. /11 '000) 

Carrying amount 
As at As at 

3 1 March2023 31 March2022 

Trade receivables 47.502 47.802 

Cash and cash equiva lents 168 183 

Loans 8,981 

Other Financial Assets 190 53 
56,842 48,038 

T rade receivables 

Tradl! receivables arc typically unsecured and are derived from revenue earned from customers. The compan) ha\'e an 
outstanding trade receivable amounting to Rs.47502 from BESCOM as at 3 1st March 2023. The company is in thl.! 
process of enteri ng into a supplementary Power Purchase Agreement ('·PP A'") and is awa iting approval from thc 
regulatory authorities. Since the same is pend ing the amount due from B[SCOM is not being received from May 20 19. 
The totnl amount held by BESCOV. will be released only afler the supplementary .. PPA .. is approved. 

Cas h mul cas h equivalents 

The Company held cash and cash equivalents \\ ith cred it worthy banks as al the reporting. dates which has bl.!cn 
measured on the 12-month expected loss bas is. The credit worthiness of such banks and financial institutions :-in: 
evaluated by the management on an ongoing basis and is considered to be good with low credit risk. 

ii. Liquidity Risi< 

Liq uidity risk is the risk that the company will encounter dirticulty in meeting obl igation, associated with finanr ial 
liabilities that are settled by de livering cash or another linancial ass1:1. The Company manages liquidity risk b) 
mainta ining adequate reserves, banki ng facilities and reserve borrowing facilit ies, by continuous!) monitoring foreca:-t 
and actual cash nows and matching the maturity profiles of fina11cial assets and liabilities. The Company has access 10 

a suffic ient variety o f sources of funding. Hav ing regards to tht: nature of the business wherein the 
Company is able- to generate fixed cash nm .. s over a period of time and to optimize the cost or funding. the Com pan~. 
from time to time. funds its k,ng -term investment from sho11-tcrm sources. The short-term borrowings can be m ll 
forward or, if required, can bi! re financed from long term borro,\ ings. In add ition. processes and policies related tn 
such risks are overseei: by senior management. 

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabil ities as nt ., I Mar1,;h 
2023 and 3 I March 2022. 

Partic ulars 

Borrowings 
Trade Payables 
Other Financial Liabi li ties 
Total 

Particu lars 

i - . ·" - on-ow1ngs 
tg.c Payables 
h :flh1anc ial Liabil ities -,/ 
al 

Less than onc 

year 

167 
7.07 1 
7,238 

Less than one 
year 

927 
105 

1,032 

(Rs. In ·0001 

As :1 t 3 1 Ma rc h 2023 

1-2 years 
2 years and 

above 
32.058 

32,058 

As at 3 1 Marc h 2022 

1-2 years 
2 years and 

above 
30,708 

30,708 

Total 

32.058 
167 

7.07 1 
39,296 

Total 

30.708 
927 

105 
.3 1, 7 40 



' 

' iii ~~rciu11° ~ UITCJl~V Risk ·---- l ., . 
The Company's operations are largely with in India and hence the exposure to fore ign currency risk is ve1)' minimal. 

30. Financial Ratios 
The Ratios for the vears ended March 31 .2023 aPd March 31,2022 are as fol lo\,s: . 
Particulars Numerator Denominator 

a) Current rat io I Current Asset Current Liability 
b) Debt-Equity ratio Total Liabilities (Debt) Shareholders Equity 
c) Debt service coverage ratio EBITDA Principal + Interest 

d) Return on equity ratio2 
Net Profit 

-
Shareholders Equity 

e) In ventory turnover ratio Net Sales Average I nvento1y 
f) Trade receivables turnover ratio Net Credit Sales Average Trade Receivables 
g) Trade payables turnover ratio Net Credit Purchase Average Trade Payables -
h) Net capital turnover ratio Turnover Working Capital 

i) Net profit ratio3 
Net Profi t Turnover 

j) Return on capita l employei EB IT Capital Employed 
Income generated from Time Weighted Average 

k) Return on investment Investment Investment -

Note: -

EBITDA - Earn ings before Interest, Taxes, Derrcciaton and Amortization 
EBIT - Earnings before Interest and Taxes 
Working Capital - Cmrent Assets less Current Liabili ties 

Carital Employed - Total Assets less Current Liabil ities 

Shareholders Equity - Share capital plus OLhcr Equity 

Ex pl:1 nation 

As at March 31, Variance 
2023 2022 (in %) 

6.69 46.71 (85.68) 

NA NA N1\ 

NA NA NA 

-2.87% 1.83% (256.56) 

NA NA NA 
0.44 0.47 (6.1 S) 
0.00 0.00 NA 
0.51 0.42 21.62 

-13.39% 9.92% (235.02) 

1.38% 5.20% (73.43) 

NA NA NA 

1. The auverse impact in current ratio is due to creation of fanne r provision leading to increase in current liabil ity. 
2. The adverse impact in return on equity ratio is due to decrease in profits during the year. 
3. The adverse impact in net profit rat io is due to decrease in profits during the year. 
4. The adverse impact in return on capital employed rat io is due to decrease in earnings before inlerest and tax. 

31. Contingent Liabilities & Commitments 
a. The company have an outstanding trade receivable amounting to Rs. 47,502 from BESCOM as at 3 I st I\ larch 

2022. The com pany is in the process of entering into a supplementary Po"ver Purchase Agreement ("PPA""l 
and is awaiti ng approval from the regulatory authorities. Since the same is pend ing the amount due from 
BESCOM of Rs.40,202 is not be ing received from May 2019 ti ll May 202 1. The tota l amount held till May 
2021 by BESCOM wi ll be released only after the supplementary "PPA" is approved. 

b. The am ount to be paid (Rs.0.53 per unit) to the Fanner from FY 201 7- 18 10 FY 2022-23 as royalty (as per 
MOU), has been recogn ised in the Financial Statements during the current fi nancial year as the company 
received pmt ially the long outstand ing dues from BESCOM. 

c. The Mana~cment is confident of getting the approval from the regulatory authorities in the near future and 
thus no provision is created for the same. 

32. Segment Reporting 
The Company is mainly engaged in the business of generation and selling of power in India. Based on the information 
reported for the purpose of resource allocation and assessment of performance. there are no reportable segments in 
accordance with the requirements of Ind ian Accounting Standard I 08-'Operating Segments', noti_tied under the 
Companies (Ind ian Accounting Standards) Rules.201 5. 

(?OWl,? to~ 0 -I 
<f) ,-

~ 
06'~0~..,_ 

I 

I 
I 



[ 33. (J11 Mar~11 24, 20'2 I, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) through a notification, amended Schedule Ill of the 
I ' Co1f1 panies Act 20 13 and the amendments are applicable for financial periods commencing from April I, 2021 . The 

Company has evaluated the effect of the amendments on its financia l statements and complied with the same. 

3-t Additional reg ulatory information 
a) Details of bcnami property held 
No proceedings lrnve been initiated on or are pending. aga inst the Company under the Prohibition of" Bcnami 
Property Transactions Act. 1988 (.is ::imcnded in 2016) (formerly the Bena mi Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 
(45 of" 1988)) and Rules 111::ide thereunder. 

h) Bo rrowing secured against current assets 
The Company has 110 borrowing limit!> sanctioned from banks and financial institutions on the basis of security of 
current assets. The quarterly returns or state111ents filed by the Company with banks and financial institutions are in 
agreement with the books of accounts. 

c) Wilful defaulter 
The Company has not bec11 declared wilful defau lter by any bank or financial institution or government or any 
government authority. 

d) Relationship with s truck off companies 
The Company ha no transactions with the companies struck off under Companies Ac!', 20 13 or Companies Ac1, 
1956. 

e) Compliance " .ith number o f layers of companies 
The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under section 2(87) of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with Companies (Restriction of n1.n11ber of layers) Ru les, 2017. 

n Utilisation of borrowed funds and s hare premium 
The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other pcrson(s) or entity(ies), including foreign 
entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall: 

a. directly or ind irectly lend or invest in 01her persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by llr on 
behalf of the Company (U lrinwte Benefic iaries) or 

b. provide any guarantee. security or the I ike to or on behalf of the ulti mate beneficiaries 

The company ha!-> not received any fund from any pcrson(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Part)) 
with the understand ing (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shal l: 

a. directly or indi rectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on 
behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 

b. provide any guarantee. security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries 

g) Undisclosed inco me 
There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current or previous year in the tax assessments 
under the Income Tax Act, 1961, that has 1101 been recorded in the books of account. 

h) Details ofcrypto currency or virtual currency 
The Company has not traded or invested in ,;rypto cu!l"ency or virtual currency during the current or previous year. 

i) Valuation of property, plant and equipment, intangible asset and investment property 
The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (includ ing righ1-of-use assets) or intangible assets 
or bl)th during the current or prev ious year. 

j) O ther regulator)" information Registratio n of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies 
There are 110 charges or satisfaction which arc yet to be registered with the Registrar of Companies beyond the 
statutory period. 



35. '.me Com'pany ha~ a process whereby periodical ly a ll long-term contracts are assessed for material foreseeable losses. 
At foe year-end, the company has reYiewed al l such contracts and confirmed that no provision is required to be created 
under any law / accounting standard towards any foreseeable losses. 

36. Prev ious year's figures are regrouped / rearranged, where necessary, to confirm to the current year's classificat ion / 
disclosure. 

See accompanying notes to the Financial Statcm,~nts: 1-36 
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